
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 
 

 

Friday, 12 August 2022 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 22 August 2022 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt (Chair), Councillor Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Councillor Alaa 

Al-Yousuf, Councillor Lidia Arciszewska, Councillor Hugo Ashton, Councillor Andrew Beaney, Councillor 

Mike Cahill, Councillor Jeff Haine, Councillor David Jackson, Councillor Geoff Saul, Councillor Dean 

Temple and Councillor Alex Wilson 
 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2022 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 7 - 46) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management. 

 
Page  Application 

Number 

Address Officer  

9-25 

22/00478/FUL Church Enstone Hall, 

Little Tew Road, 

Church Enstone. 

James Nelson 

 

26-

32 

22/00582/LBC Church Enstone Hall, 

Little Tew Road, 

Church Enstone 

James Nelson 

 

33-

46 

22/00838/OUT 

 

Land At Chapel Lane, 

Enstone. 

Stephanie 

Eldridge 

 

 
5.  

 

Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 47 - 68) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 25 July 2022 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Elizabeth Poskitt (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair),  Alaa Al-Yousuf, Lidia 

Arciszewska, Andrew Beaney, Mike Cahill, Nathalie Chapple, Julian Cooper, Jeff Haine,  Geoff 

Saul and Alex Wilson 

Officers:  Stephanie Eldridge (Senior Planner) Janet Eustace (Democratic Services Manager).  

12 Election of Chair for the 2022/23 Council Year  

It was confirmed that Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt should be Chair of Uplands Area Planning 

Sub-Committee for the 2022/23 Council Year. 

13 Election of the Vice Chair for the 2022/23 Council Year  

It was confirmed that Councillor Rizvana Poole should be Vice Chair of Uplands Area Planning 

Sub-Committee for the 2022/23 Council Year. 

14 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2022 were approved and signed by the Chair as a 

correct record subject to the deletion of the last line of paragraph six, page 2, being deleted 

and replaced by ‘Councillor Haine stated that the previous application had already been 

approved and that he supported this application as being an improvement on that one’.  

15 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies were received from Councillors: Ashton, Temple and Jackson.  

Councillor Natalie Chapple substituted for Councillor Jackson and Councillor Cooper 

substituted for Cllr Ashton.  

16 Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest received. 

17 Applications for Development  

22/00838/OUT Land At Chapel Lane, Enstone 

The Planning Officer, Stephanie Eldridge, introduced the application for outline planning 

permission for a residential development (up to 8 dwellings), access, parking, public open space, 

landscaping and associated development infrastructure (some matters reserved). 

There were three speakers. There was a statement from Jason Tait who spoke in support of 

the application. A copy of this submission is attached to the original copy of the minutes.  

Councillor Beaney asked why none of the supporters of the development had been present at 

the Parish Council meeting on 23 May and was told that the atmosphere was too intimidating 
for any to express support. Mr Tait confirmed that there would be a mix of properties of 

different sizes. 

The second speaker was Nicola Knott, Chair of Enstone Parish Council, who spoke to object 

the application. A copy of this submission is attached to the original copy of the minutes. In 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

25/July2022 

response to a question from Councillor Saul, Ms Knott confirmed that the field was not a 

public open space but that it had been an asset to the village for many years. 

The third speaker was Hannah Bourne-Taylor who spoke to object to the application. A copy 

of this submission is attached to the original copy of the minutes.  

The Planning Officer continued with her presentation. Enstone is classified in the Local Plan 

2031 as a village which is suitable for limited development (Policy OS2). Housing Policy H2 

states that new dwellings will be permitted on undeveloped land within the built up areas 

provided that the proposal is in accordance with the other policies in the plan and in particular 

the general principles set out in Policy OS2. Illustrative plans show the provision of two 

accesses on the northern and southern boundaries of the site with eight dwellings located in 

the western half of the site. A footpath running connects the two sides of Chapel Lane with a 

significant area of public open space with landscaping to the east.  

 

The Local Highway Authority has raised no objections to the application and planners 

considered that the siting and detailed design of the dwellings could ensure that there are no 

amenity issues resulting from the development. An ecological appraisal of the site has been 

submitted, and while landscaping is a reserved matter, the indicative plans show a significant 

area of the site retained as public open space with a wildflower meadow, native planting, and 

the potential for an ecology pond.  The site lies within Flood Zone 1 in an area at very low 

risk from fluvial flooding and the Council's Drainage Officer has raised no objection.  The plan 

specifies that two of the proposed dwellings are offered as affordable housing which could be 

delivered by adopting the Government's First Homes Initiative where a 30% discount to open 

market value would be preserved on these two properties in perpetuity.  

 

Taking into account the above matters, the planners consider the plan is acceptable on its 
merits and complies with Policies OS2, OS4, H2, H6, EH2, EH3, T1, T2, and T3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide 2016, subject to the relevant legal agreements.  

Councillor Haine proposed that Members should visit the site before reaching any decisions. 

Councillor Beaney asked if the Ecology Officer might attend the next Committee meeting as 

he would welcome clarity around the various statements made regarding the biodiversity of 

the field. The Development Manager explained that the ecology advice is currently provided by 

an external consultant with a permanent officer due to start in August. She would ask the 

consultant to respond to the points raised in the Statements.  

Councillor Cooper asked if a County Council Highways Officer might attend and the Planning 

Officer said she would invite them.  

The Chair asked that reports be headed either ‘Conditions’ or ‘Reasons for Refusal’ rather 

than both as at present.  

Resolved that there should be a site meeting at 10 am on Thursday 18 August with 

Councillors meeting at the school car park.  

 

22/01061/FUL The Manor House, Gallery West Street Chipping Norton  

This planning application had been withdrawn. 

 

 

Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

25/July2022 

18 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

There were no questions on the applications determined under delegated powers. It was 

recognised that the list represented a significant amount of work for the planning officers who 

were thanked for their efforts. The arrival of a new team leader in the Enforcement team 

meant that the six monthly Enforcement Report would be reinstated. It was agreed that the 

table of planning contacts should be updated and reissued. 

Councillor Al-Yousuf asked if there had been a decision on publishing Statements with the 

electronic version of the Committee minutes. The Democratic Services Officer said she would 

provide an answer before the next meeting.  

Councillor Haine noted that the frequency of meetings had been increased and queried 

whether more applications would be coming to future meetings. Planning officers confirmed 

that some applications for large developments would be coming forward soon. It was agreed 

that frequency of meetings should be discussed at the Development Control meeting.  

Councillor Saul commented that the result of the appeal case at Milton Under Wychood 

underlined the importance of ensuring that all statements are backed up by planning policies. 

There was a question about the enforcement issues at Diddly Squat Farm. Kelly Murray, the 

new Enforcement team leader, confirmed that investigations are ongoing.   

It was noted that Statements should be taken in order of Objectors, Ward Members and then 

Applicants. 

 

 

The Meeting closed at 2.50 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 22nd August 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Page  Application Number Address Officer 

 

9 - 25 22/00478/FUL Church Enstone Hall Little Tew 

Road 

 

James Nelson 

 

26 - 32 22/00582/LBC Church Enstone Hall Little Tew 

Road 

 

James Nelson 

 

33 - 46 22/00838/OUT Land At Chapel Lane 

 

Stephanie 

Eldridge 

 

Page 8



 

Application Number 22/00478/FUL 

Site Address Church Enstone Hall 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

Date 10th August 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 437824 E       225212 N 

Committee Date 22nd August 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

Application Details: 

 

Removal of existing bungalow adjoining Tithe Barn and garage outbuilding. Erection of a new detached 

dwelling with associated works. Change of use of land to create additional domestic curtilage along with 

the construction of an outdoor swimming pool to serve Church Enstone Hall. Remedial works to Tithe 

Barn (amended plans). 

 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr And Mr Cornet De Ways Ruart 

Rectory Farm 

Church Enstone Hall  

Little Tew Road 

Oxfordshire 

Church Enstone 

OX7 4NL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation Officer With respect to the fine Grade II* listed monastic tithe barn, these 

proposals are all eminently supportable. The existing bungalow is a 

major blight, greatly detracting from the barn, and removal is heartily 

to be welcomed - and the new cottage, in principle, is a price worth 

paying, in my view. Otherwise, the proposals for the barn are all 

supportable - subject to samples of the new stone tiles. And note that 

they are removing the concrete floor and substituting breathable 

limecrete - again, very welcome. But one thing that needs more 

thought is that there is an important date stone set into the east wall 

of the barn - which would become external when the bungalow is 

removed, and thus exposed to weather for the first time in many 

years.  They need a specialist conservator's report on the condition 

of this, and also recommendations for any action that needs to be 

taken. 

 

With respect to the proposed cottage, I think that the siting, the 

volume and the general form is acceptable - and in fact there were 

once farm buildings here. However, whilst the proportions are good, 

I do think that as currently shown it is a little too fussy - whereas we 

need this new building to be as self-effacing as possible, to reduce 

impact on the setting of the tithe barn.  So, I suggest that they omit 

both of the shallow projecting front wings and cross gables, and just 

have simple semi-dormers. I also suggest that they lower it as far as 

possible. 

 

Design of dwelling subsequently amended and schedule of works provided  

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

OCC Highways  No objection. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands  No objection. 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  No objection subject to condition. 

 

 

OCC Archaeological Services The site is located in an area of considerable archaeological interest 

and the proposed pool is located immediately west of a scheduled 

monument of an early C15th stone barn. A medieval rectory has 

been recorded 50m to the west of the proposed pool. This has been 

suggested is the grange of Wynchcombe Abbey.  

 

A series of medieval fishponds have also been recorded immediately 

west of this. The proposed pool site is located 115m west of the 

C12th St Kenelm's Church. An archaeological evaluation has been 

undertaken on the location of the proposed swimming pool, which 

recorded medieval features including ditches and pits. The 

excavations for the swimming pool will impact these features. Further 

medieval remands may also survive beneath the existing bungalow 

which would be disturbed by the new dwelling. We would, therefore, 

recommend that, should planning permission be granted, the applicant 

should be responsible for ensuring the implementation of a staged 

programme of archaeological investigation to be maintained during 

the period of construction. This can be ensured through the 

attachment of a suitable conditions.  

 

Parish Council Enstone Parish Council supports the removal of the existing bungalow 

but objects to the construction of an outdoor swimming pool at a 

17th Century medieval site. Could the swimming pool be built in a 

different location to this historic site?  

 

Enstone Parish Council wishes to see the heritage asset report, as 

requested by the lead archaeologist. The Parish Council has read both 

the Archaeology Report and Historic England documents.  

 

The site is of great historical importance within Enstone Parish which 

should be preserved and protected. 

 

Historic England The application site sits immediately adjacent to the scheduled 

monument known as: Barn at Rectory Farm, Church Enstone, a 14th 

century tithe barn. A package of works is proposed including the 

construction of a swimming pool, the removal of a bungalow attached 

to the tithe barn, the construction of new manager’s accommodation 

and a series of repairs to the tithe barn. We do not object to the 

proposals but will require more information on the proposals to re-

roof the tithe barn. The remaining elements of the scheme are 

Page 11



multifaceted with the construction of the new manager's 

accommodation and swimming pool bringing a low level of harm to 

the setting of the scheduled monument. The removal of the attached 

bungalow to the barn and the package of repairs proposed (excluding 

the current roofing proposals) will be of benefit and we are 

supportive of these elements of the scheme. 

 

Further information subsequently provided- full report online. 

 

Society For Protection Of 

Ancient Buildings (SPAB) 

The proposed works fall in to several parts, but our detailed 

comments will focus on the proposed works to the tithe barn which 

dates from 1382 having originally been built for Walter de 

Wynforton, Abbot of Winchcombe. Please note that as this structure 

is both scheduled and listed, Scheduled Monument Consent will be 

required for any proposed works which affect it. This is dealt with 

exclusively by Historic England and is agreed by the Secretary of 

State. There may also be a requirement for additional archaeological 

input given the sensitivity of the site, especially where services need 

to be brought into the buildings.  

 

Removal of the existing bungalow 

 

At present there is a 1950's bungalow attached to the barn, which 

obviously has a considerable impact, both physically and visually. The 

proposals are to remove this, which is greatly welcomed, but we 

would want to be very sure that the demolition was done extremely 

carefully and would not inadvertently cause any harm to the historic 

fabric where the two buildings abut. Further information is likely to 

be required to determine exactly how the demolition works are to 

take place.  

 

Removal of the garage and its replacement with a new house 

 

The existing single storey garage block close to the tithe barn is to be 

demolished and replaced with a new house, which will be 

accommodation for the manager. There seems to be little proper 

assessment of the garage which currently follows a boundary wall, and 

has what appears to be a historic wall / steps projecting from the 

smaller section. We are concerned that there may be historic fabric 

in this area which has not been properly assessed and this could be 

important given the intention is to completely remove the garage. We 

would therefore suggest that further information is provided in 

respect of the garage and the adjacent boundary wall before a firm 

decision can be made regarding its complete removal.  

 

Should the removal of the garage be acceptable, the proposed 

replacement house is a storey higher and therefore there will be a 

slight visual impact on the adjacent barn, although we do appreciate 

that effort has gone into making the new house more visually in-

keeping with its surroundings. However, the new dwelling may 'force' 

Page 12



the boundary wall into a more regular line which may be an issue if it 

is a historic wall, so this will need to be clarified. 

 

Remedial works to the tithe barn 

    

We welcome the proposed works to the tithe barn in principle, but 

we do have some specific concerns at this stage, primarily due to a 

lack of information: 

 

 We are very concerned about the proposed treatment of the 

buttress at the north-west corner (see proposed Tithe Barn 

Elevations 3 of 3). In reality this probably just consists of re-

pointing works, but it is highlighted on the drawing as to be 

being demolished, which we would not support without 

extremely robust justification. This needs to be clarified.  

 Roof: it is proposed to 're-roof entire roof with new stone 

slate tiles and timber roofing battens to match existing'. The 

total replacement of the battens will require stripping the 

roof which introduces a risk of damage without any 

justification. We would expect to see a Condition Survey 

from a Conservation Accredited Structural Engineer and then 

details of the possible options, with repair being preferable to 

replacement. A Specification of the works will be required 

and this should include details such as the proposed mortar 

mixes.  

 We would not support rebuilding as opposed to stabilisation 

where external masonry is 'collapsing' unless it can be 

demonstrated that this is the only option. The masonry does 

not appear to be collapsing at all and there is no Structural 

Engineers report provided.  

 'Discrete lighting and power' is to be installed but no details 

have been provided nor is it stated what the proposed use of 

the barn will be. Details of fixing methods and cable runs 

should be provided given the age of the fabric, particularly 

where below ground works are required.  

 The replacement of the existing concrete floor with limecrete 

is likely to be acceptable in principle, but it would be helpful 

to have further details and a methodology to ensure that no 

harm is done. 

 

Summary 

 

Overall we are generally supportive of the proposals, especially the 

removal of the bungalow. However, further information is required 

before the application can be determined. 

 

Further information subsequently provided. 

 

Ancient Monuments Society  No Comment Received. 

 

Page 13



 

Council For British Archeology  No Comment Received. 

 

 

2 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

2.1 Design and Access Statement 

 

2.1.1 The applicant has submitted a Design and Access Statement to support the application. The key 

points are summarised below, the full document is available to view on the Council's website. 

 

2.1.2 Rectory Farm at is an important and highly sensitive site, which requires a sympathetic and 

imaginative design solution to ensure not only the protection of the setting of the Tithe Barn, but 

also improvements in its visual appearance to the village of Church Enstone immediately to the 

south. 

 

2.1.3 This proposal represents a unique and exciting opportunity to complete the site masterplan; to 

include the sensitive repair of the Tithe Barn, the removal of the bungalow to facilitate the wider 

view from the public access point to be corrected, and restore it to its historically correct form, a 

replacement energy efficient dwelling in keeping with the local vernacular constructed and a 

modest outdoor pool located in what was land historically used for domestic purposes. 

 

2.1.4 Involvement with Heritage Professionals, Ecologists and Archaeologists with diligent historical 

research and evaluation, as well as careful design development, has produced a considered 

solution for the site which is of the highest quality, and is to the benefit of all stakeholders both 

now and in the future. 

 

2.1.5 The proposal can also be seen to align with local and national planning policy: through a 

combination of extensive research and appreciation of vernacular design along with careful 

positioning within the site, we are confident that the design is of high quality, enhances its 

immediate setting (and vastly enhances the views of the barn) and is sensitive to the defining 

characteristics of the local area. 

 

2.1.6 Given the significance of this site and respective heritage assets, great weight is given to its 

conservation and therefore the repair of the Tithe Barn should be welcomed. The localised stone 

repairs and French drains are holistic solutions to the damp which is caused by the external 

ground levels. 

 

2.1.7 The bungalow exacerbates an unfortunate and detrimental impact on the historic Tithe Barn, 

masking its evidential and aesthetic significance. By relocating the replacement dwelling, it restores 

and fully opens up the south-east elevation of the barn (the key public vantage point), improving 

its evidential and aesthetic significance along with ensuring that views from the rear of the 

Rectorial Tithe Barn outwards over the remnant of the formal garden with terraces, fish pond and 

gravel walks are respected. 

 

2.1.8 The swimming pool as a stand-alone item was previously seen to cause 'less than substantial harm' 

by the Case Officer (following positive pre-Application advice). However, following suitable 

archaeological investigation, and when included within a proposal to remove the bungalow and 

series of repairs to the barn, it is seen to be justifiable. After all, the proposals contained within 

this application have public benefits of the restoration of the Tithe Barn, the views and the 

Page 14



ecological benefits, and above all securing its optimum viable use through a series of sympathetic 

repairs.  

 

2.1.9 The setting of the pool has been thoroughly explored, and being set down in a terrace below the 

barn, which cannot be seen from various locations as previously noted, and will be a simple dark 

coloured shell with a reclaimed York stone coping in an area which was historically a landscaped 

terrace. 

 

2.1.10 Overall, we feel that the proposals have a long term benefit to the site and on the heritage assets 

at the site including the setting of the Scheduled Ancient Monument/Grade II* Listed Barn. Given 

the significance of this site and respective heritage assets, great weight is given to its conservation, 

and taking into account all the proposals, we feel that the masterplan presented here including the 

swimming pool can either conserve or enhance its setting, 

 

2.1.11 As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies OS2, OS4, EH9, EH11, and EH15 of the adopted 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, the National 

Design Guide, and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2019. 

 

 

3 THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS  

 

3.1 Objection Comments 

 

3.1.1 A total of two comments opposing the application have been received. The following matters are 

raised:  

 

 The construction of a swimming pool close to the Tithe Barn is inconsistent with the 

preservation of a heritage asset; 

 Inaccuracy regarding the history of the site; 

 Damage/disturbance to medieval remains caused by the pool construction; and 

 Disturbance that would result from construction 

 

All matters are addressed in Section 5 of this report.  

 

3.2 Support Comment 

 

3.2.1 A single comment in support of the scheme has been received. The comment references the 

heritage benefits that would be accrued through the removal of the bungalow and repairs to the 

Barn. The siting of the proposed pool is considered suitable given the former use of the land.  

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H6NEW Existing housing 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

Page 15



EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 Introduction  

 

5.1.1 This application seeks consent at Church Enstone Hall, Little Tew, Road, Church Enstone for:  

 

Removal of existing bungalow adjoining Tithe Barn and garage outbuilding. Erection of a new detached 

dwelling with associated works. Change of use of land to create additional domestic curtilage along with 

the construction of an outdoor swimming pool to serve Church Enstone Hall. Remedial works to Tithe 

Barn. 

 

5.1.2 The Tithe Barn may date from the C14 and is Grade II* listed and designated as a Scheduled 

Monument. The application site lies in close proximity to listed buildings to two Grade II listed 

buildings to the south (Heythrop Cottage and Rectory Farmhouse). The application site is not 

located within a conservation area or area of outstanding natural beauty and is within Flood Risk 

Zone 1. The application is brought before Members due to the objection of the Enstone Parish 

Council.  

 

5.2 Relevant Planning History 

 

13/1219/P/FP- Erection of replacement dwelling together with associated works, landscaping and 

restoration of tithe barn (approved). 

 

13/1220/P/LB- Restoration of tithe barn including demolition of existing farm bungalow and 

derelict stabling (approved). 

 

14/1084/P/FP- Erection of replacement dwelling together with associated works, landscaping and 

restoration of tithe barn (to allow amendments to previously approved application 

13/1219/P/FP) (approved).  

 

16/01256/HHD- Alterations to dwelling and outbuildings, erection of workshop/store 

(approved). 

 

16/01257/LBC- Internal and external alterations (approved). 

 

20/02364/FUL- Erection of four bay garage (approved).  

 

21/00366/FUL- Change of use of land to enlarge garden area and renovation of existing 

outbuilding to become pool building, including leisure facilities and pool plant equipment, 

installation of a swimming pool with paved area, and a proposed gravel track from existing 

driveway to the Tithe Barn courtyard (refused). 

 

Page 16



21/02346/HHD- Conversion of existing domestic outbuilding to garden pavilion comprising gym, 

sauna, steam room, loggia bar and changing facilities. Provision of gravel track (approved). 

 

5.3 Relevant Planning Considerations  

 

5.3.1 Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the representations 

of interested parties, your officers consider that the key considerations for the application are 

principle, siting, design and form, visual and heritage impact, neighbourly amenity, highways 

impacts and ecology impacts. 

 

5.4 Principle  

 

5.4.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(the Act) provides that the Local Planning Authority (LPA) shall have regard to the provisions of 

the development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material 

considerations.  The revised NPPF reiterates the pre-eminence of the local plan as the starting 

point for decision-making (Paragraph 2 of the NPPF). The NPPF is a material consideration in 

any assessment and makes clear in Paragraph 12 that the presumption in favour of sustainable 

development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting point 

for decision-making. Therefore, development coming forward must be determined in 

accordance with the Local Development Plan, which in this case is the West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031 (WOLP). 

 

5.4.2 The application is comprised of three elements. Firstly, the provision of a replacement dwelling via 

erection of a detached cottage in place of an existing bungalow and garage building. The second 

element is the installation of a swimming pool and associated material change in the use of the 

land to serve an existing dwelling on the site, Church Enstone Hall. Finally, remedial work will be 

carried out to the listed Tithe Barn. The principle of development in relation to each of these 

three elements is discussed below. 

 

5.4.3 WOLP Policy OS2 is relevant to all elements of the scheme as it provides the starting point for 

locating new development, the site sites within the small village of Church Enstone. OS2 details 

that:  

 

"Development in the small villages, hamlets and open countryside will be limited to that which requires 

and is appropriate for a rural location and which respects the intrinsic character of the area. Proposals 

for residential development will be considered under policy H2." 

 

5.4.4 The application must also demonstrate compliance with the general principles of OS2 notably that 

development should: 

 

 "Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality;  

 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area; and  

 

 Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment.  

Page 17



 

5.4.5 In terms of the provision of a replacement dwelling, WOLP H2 outlines that new dwellings in small 

villages will be permitted in limited circumstances including:  

 

"replacement dwellings on a one for one basis.".  

 

5.4.6 Further, WOLP Policy H6 deals directly with the principle of development for proposed 

replacement dwellings and states:  

 

"proposals to replace an existing permanent dwelling which is not of historical or architectural value will be 

permitted on a one-for-one basis, provided the character and appearance of the surrounding area is not 

eroded, there would be no harmful impact on ecology or protected species and the replacement dwelling is 

of a reasonable scale relative to the original building."  

 

5.4.7 Your officers therefore consider that there is clear policy support for the principle of a 

replacement dwelling in this location provided the proposal can demonstrate compliance with the 

four tests as set out in Policy H6. Further, the remaining elements of the scheme are also 

considered acceptable in principle subject to demonstration of compliance with the general 

principles of Policy OS2 as well as the policies of the development plan when read as a whole.  

 

5.5 Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.5.1  Local Plan Policy OS4 states that new development should respect the historic, architectural and 

landscape character of the locality. Section 12 of the revised NPPF reinforces the fundamental 

nature of good design to sustainable development and states that 'development that is not well 

designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies' (Para. 134). 

 

5.5.2  The proposed new dwelling would replace a modern bungalow attached to the Grade II* listed 

Tithe Barn. The existing bungalow was a former milking shed converted to a dwelling in the 

1970s under planning ref: C73/0208. Your officers consider that the bungalow is not of historical 

or architectural value and the principle of its removal is therefore acceptable in accordance with 

WOLP Policy H6.  

 

5.5.3  The replacement dwelling itself would be sited in place of an existing modern garage building 

against the eastern site boundary. The two-bedroom, detached dwelling would be of modest 

scale, set over one and a half storeys with an attached garage. It would be dual pitched and 

constructed of local Cotswold stone with a ridge height of 7.2 metres (m) and an eaves height of 

4m. The design would display a low-key, vernacular character, employing locally characteristic 

forms, materials and detailing such as the proposed chimney and window design. For the 

purposes of WOLP Policy H6, the proposed replacement dwelling is considered of reasonable 

scale in comparison to the bungalow to be removed. Whilst the proposed dwelling would 

represent an increase in terms of height, the footprint of the proposed dwelling would be 

smaller than the existing bungalow and the overall massing is comparable.  

 

5.5.4  The proposed pool would be sited to the west of the Tithe Barn on a grassed terrace area over 

a footprint of 20m by 7m. Works to the Tithe Barn include repairing the existing roof tiles and 

'torching' the existing slates, stonework repair, reopening of triangular openings and the 

installation of a French drain. Further internal works are proposed and assessed under 

concurrent Listed Building Consent (LBC) application ref: 22/00582/LBC as they do not amount 

to development for the purposes of the Act.     

Page 18



 

5.5.5  The visual and heritage impacts of the proposed development is fully considered in the following 

section of this report.  

 

5.6 Visual and Heritage Impact  

 

5.6.1  As the Tithe Barn is a listed building and within the setting of nearby listed buildings, officers are 

required to take account of section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 as amended which states that considering development which affects a listed building, 

the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building 

or its setting or of any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

WOLP Policies OS2, EH9 and EH11 also contain a strong presumption against heritage harm. 

 

5.6.2  The effect of a proposed development upon a scheduled monument is also a material planning 

consideration in this case and WOLP Policy EH9 outlines that "great weight and importance" 

will be given to conserving and/or enhancing the significance of designated heritage assets, 

including scheduled monuments. This applies to both the fabric of the scheduled monument and 

its setting.  

 

5.6.3  Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining 

applications, LPAs should take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets. Paragraph 194 requires the applicant to describe the significance 

of affected heritage assets. Paragraph 199 states that when considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a listed building, or 

scheduled monument, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more 

important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance 

of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its 

setting), should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 200). Paragraph 202 states 

that where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 

designated heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of 

the proposal, where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use. 

 

5.6.4  The application has been furnished with a heritage statement, which has provided an assessment 

of the significance of the Tithe Barn and impact of the proposals upon this significance. Given the 

scale and nature of the proposed changes, officers consider that the assessment provided allows 

the LPA to fully assess the impact on the proposal in line with paragraph 194 of the NPPF.  

 

5.6.5  As the scheme comprised three distinguishable elements, the impact of each will first be 

considered before conducting a heritage balance to determine the overall impact that the 

proposal would have upon the identified designated heritage assets.  

 

5.6.7 In order to identify the potential impact of the proposal upon the significance of designated 

heritage assets, it is first necessary to identify and assess the particular significance of the assets 

as directed in NPPF Paragraph 195. In this case, the principle heritage asset that would be 

affected is the C14 Rectorial Tithe Barn which is both Grade II* listed and a scheduled 

monument. Secondly, the proposed works have the potential to affect the setting of two listed 

buildings to the south of the site (Heythrop Cottage and Rectory Farmhouse). In the case of the 

Barn, its significance is largely derived from its historical, cultural and social contribution to the 

area, together with its architectural significance as a very well preserved and fine example of a 

late medieval tithe barn.  

Page 19



 

5.6.8  The site has also been subject to archaeological investigation, which has evidenced medieval 

features including ditches and pits. The application has been subject to consultation with 

Oxfordshire County Council's Archaeologist who has raised no objection to the scheme subject 

to the use of planning conditions. 

 

Replacement Dwelling and Works to Tithe Barn 

 

5.6.9  The most significant element of the scheme is the removal and replacement of the modern 

existing bungalow. The applicant's Design and Access Statement/Heritage Report states that:  

 

"The removal of the bungalow is seen as a major improvement for the site, having a positive impact to 

the traditional historic character, integrity, and setting of the Listed Building."  

 

5.6.10  Following consultation with the LPA's highly qualified and experienced Conservation and Design 

Architect, your officers share this view as the existing bungalow detracts significantly from the 

setting of the Tithe Barn and partially obscures its historic form. Therefore, its removal and 

replacement with a more locally characteristic dwelling, set in a less prominent location within 

the site and further away from the Barn is considered to result in a significant improvement to 

the setting of the Barn and a slightly positive impact upon the setting of nearby listed buildings. 

This results in a direct enhancement to the identified heritage assets, to which great weight 

should be applied as directed in WOLP Policy EH9.  

 

5.6.11  The proposed works to the Tithe Barn itself are also considered to result in a positive impact 

upon the Grade II* listed barn. The works are largely non-intrusive and would conserve and 

reinstate the Barn whilst securing its long term future through improved drainage and works to 

secure the roof. Therefore, this element of the scheme also results in a direct benefit in heritage 

terms to which great weight should be applied in the planning balance.  

   

Proposed Pool   

 

5.6.12  The remaining element of the scheme is the installation of a swimming pool on land to the west 

of the Tithe Barn, which lies outside of the scheduled monument. The pool would be set on a 

levelled terrace, below the level of the barn and screened in the approach to the Barn from the 

south. This terrace forms the upper level of a range of three with the lower an ornamental pond 

and the upper two laid to grass. The design of the pool is informed by the existing pond. The 

immediate setting of the barn as viewed from the west is therefore representative of historic 

ornamental landscaping. Your officers consider the addition of a pool will further formalise the 

setting of the barn, resulting in a modern domesticating impact upon its setting.  

 

5.6.13  This change in character would result in some harm to the setting of the Barn when viewed in 

isolation. Your officers consider that given that the proposed pool would not impact the fabric 

of the listed building and its impact upon its setting would be somewhat offset by the existing 

landscaping on the site, this harm should be considered 'less than substantial' for the purposes of 

NPPF Paragraph 202. 'Less than substantial' encompassed a wide range of harm and your officers 

consider that in this case, the identified harm is at the lower end of the scale.  

 

5.6.14  Where less than substantial harm to a designated heritage asset is identified, NPPF Paragraph 

202 dictates that "this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal". A 

heritage balancing exercise is therefore carried out in the following section of this report. 

Page 20



 

Heritage Balance 

 

5.6.15  In this instance, the proposed replacement dwelling (including removal of modern bungalow) and 

remedial works to the Barn would result in significant enhancements to both the setting and 

fabric of the Barn, as well as a slight positive impact with respect to the setting of nearby listed 

buildings through the removal of the bungalow. In officers assessment, as informed by the LPA's 

Conservation and Design Architect, the enhancements to the fabric and setting of the Tithe 

Barn, and nearby listed dwellings, resulting from the proposed replacement dwelling and 

remedial works constitute clear public (heritage) benefits which far outweigh the 'less than 

substantial' harm to the setting of the Tithe Barn that would result from the addition of a 

swimming pool. As a result, the proposed development is considered by your officers to accord 

with WOLP Policies OS2, EH9 and EH11 as well as the guidance contained in the NPPF and is 

acceptable in visual and heritage impact terms.  

 

5.7 Neighbourly Amenity 

 

5.7.1  Local Plan Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses 

and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of 

minimising adverse impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated 

in Policy OS4, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide and NPPF paragraph 185.  

 

5.7.2  With regard to the impact on neighbouring amenity, officers consider that due to the siting of 

the dwelling in relation to its neighbours no significant impact will result upon neighbouring 

occupiers by way of overlooking, overbearing or loss of light. Further, the proposed pool is 

sited well away from neighbouring dwellings and would therefore give rise to no material 

increase in noise disturbance. In light of this assessment, your officers consider that the proposal 

is acceptable in terms of neighbourly amenity and the proposed replacement dwelling will 

provide acceptable levels of amenity for future occupiers. In addition, given the scale of the 

proposed development, your officers do not consider it necessary to impose conditions 

regarding construction traffic. Therefore, the proposed development accords with WOLP 

Polices OS2 and OS4 with regard to neighbourly amenity and is acceptable. 

  

5.8 Highways Impacts 

 

5.8.1  WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access 

and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services and facilities. The Local 

Highways Authority (LHA) have been consulted on the application and stated that the proposal 

would not have a significant detrimental impact in terms of highway safety and convenience on 

the adjacent highway network. Therefore, your officers consider that the scheme is acceptable 

in highways terms.  

 

5.9 Ecology Impacts  

 

5.9.1  WOLP Policy EH3 states that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and 

enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity. Policy H6 also requires that replacement 

of existing dwellings results in no harmful impact on ecology or protected species. 

 

5.9.2  The application has been furnished with a protected species report, which concludes that 

subject to the implementation of mitigation, compensation, and enhancement strategies as 

Page 21



detailed in the Report, the proposed development would accord with WOLP Policy EH3 and 

national legislation with regard to protected species. Officers therefore recommend that should 

Members resolve to approve the application, a planning condition is imposed to ensure that all 

working practices and enhancement features as detailed in the Report are be implemented in 

full. Subject to the imposition of planning conditions, your officers conclude that the application 

is acceptable in ecological terms. 

 

5.10 Recommendation  

 

5.10.1  In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with WOLP 2031 

Policies OS1, OS2, OS4, H2, H6, T1, T3, T4, EH2, EH3, EH9 and EH11, the West Oxfordshire 

Design Guide 2016 and NPPF 2021. The application is therefore recommended to Members for 

conditional approval.   

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the plan(s) accompanying the 

application as modified by the revised plan(s) deposited on 28.04.22 and 28.06.22. 

 

REASON: The application details have been amended by the submission of revised details. 

 

3. Prior to the first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the existing dwelling located 

within the site, currently known as Rectory Farm Bungalow and shown on the submitted site 

layout plan, shall have been demolished and permanently removed from the site. 

 

REASON: Permission is granted for a one for one replacement only. 

 

4. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all materials, 

finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character of the 

area. 

 

5. The external walls of the proposed dwelling shall be constructed with local natural stone, a 

sample of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

before development commences. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

Page 22



6. The roof of the proposed dwelling shall be covered with materials, a sample of which shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any roofing 

commences. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

7 Prior to the commencement of any works to the Tithe Barn, a sample area of the proposed re-

pointing on the barn shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building. 

 

8 Prior to the commencement of any works to the Tithe Barn, a sample panel of the proposed 

stone tiles proposed for repairs to the roof shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building. 

 

9 No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

10 Prior to any demolition and the commencement of the development a professional 

archaeological organisation acceptable to the Local Planning Authority shall prepare an 

Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation, relating to the application site area, which shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To safeguard the recording of archaeological matters within the site in accordance with the 

NPPF (2021).  

 

11 Following the approval of the Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 10, and 

prior to any demolition on the site and the commencement of the development (other than in 

accordance with the agreed Written Scheme of Investigation), a staged programme of 

archaeological evaluation and mitigation shall be carried out by the commissioned archaeological 

organisation in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of Investigation. The programme 

of work shall include all processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and 

useable archive and a full report for publication which shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority within two years of the completion of the archaeological fieldwork.  

 

REASON: To safeguard the identification, recording, analysis and archiving of heritage assets before they 

are lost and to advance understanding of the heritage assets in their wider context through publication 

and dissemination of the evidence in accordance with the NPPF (2021). 

 

12 That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme and results of soakage tests 

carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three tests should be carried out for 

Page 23



each soakage pit as per BRE 365 with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for 

design. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to 

the first occupation of the development hereby approved. Development shall not take place 

until an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is not 

exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National Planning 

Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface water design is not agreed before 

works commence, it could result in abortive works being carried out on site or alterations to the 

approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not occur. 

 

13 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary, a 

remediation scheme must be prepared to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended 

use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity 

 

14 The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations of Section 5 of 

the Ecological Impact Assessment Report dated 14/02/2022 and prepared by Wildwood Ecology 

as submitted with the application. All the recommendations in relation to working practices and 

enhancement features shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales or prior 

to first occupation of the dwelling, whichever comes first, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure that the species and habitats are protected in accordance with The Conservation 

of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 

amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to 

comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

15 Details of any external lighting, including measures to control light spillage, shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before first occupation of the dwelling 

hereby approved. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 

thereafter permanently maintained as agreed. No further lighting shall be thereafter installed.  

 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to minimise light spillage into wildlife corridors. 

 

16 All works affecting the fabric of the Tithe Barn shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the 

'Tithe Barn Repairs Schedule' (Rev B) dated 28.06.2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure that parts of the original building are properly protected and conserved during 

works. 

 

 

 

Page 24



INFORMATIVES :- 

 

The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable Drainage 

Techniques in order to ensure compliance with; 

 

 Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))  

 

 Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in sustainable home building practice 

     

 Oxfordshire County Council's Local standards and guidance for surface water drainage on major 

development in Oxfordshire (V1.2 December 2021) 

     

 The local flood risk management strategy published by Oxfordshire County Council 2015 - 2020 

as per the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1)) 

 

 CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015 

 

 The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, produced by 

the Environment Agency in July 2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 10th August 2022 

Page 25



 
Application Number 22/00582/LBC 

Site Address Church Enstone Hall 

Little Tew Road 

Church Enstone 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 4NL 

 

Date 10th August 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 437824 E       225212 N 

Committee Date 22nd August 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

Application Details: 

 

Internal and external alterations to Tithe Barn to include replacement of existing doors and the removal 

of the attached bungalow 

 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr And Mrs Cornet De Ways Ruart 

Rectory Farm 

Church Enstone Hall  

Little Tew Road 

Oxfordshire 

Church Enstone 

OX7 4NL 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation Officer With respect to the fine Grade II* listed monastic tithe barn, these 

proposals are all eminently supportable. The existing bungalow is a 

major blight, greatly detracting from the barn, and removal is heartily 

to be welcomed - and the new cottage, in principle, is a price worth 

paying, in my view. Otherwise, the proposals for the barn are all 

supportable - subject to samples of the new stone tiles. And note that 

they are removing the concrete floor and substituting breathable 

limecrete - again, very welcome. But one thing that needs more 

thought is that there is an important date stone set into the east wall 

of the barn - which would become external when the bungalow is 

removed, and thus exposed to weather for the first time in many 

years.  They need a specialist conservator's report on the condition 

of this, and also recommendations for any action that needs to be 

taken. 

 

Schedule of works subsequently provided 

 

Parish Council  No Comment Received. 

 

Historic England  Where on a site the asset is dual designated i.e. listed and scheduled, 

it is the scheduling legislation that takes precedence and therefore 

LBC is not required. All works to the asset - in this case the tithe 

barn - will be controlled and monitored through scheduled 

monument consent (SMC).  

 

It is my view that LBC should not be sought for these proposals 

(unless there is a different trigger) and that the LBC should be 

withdrawn. The planning application should suffice in this instance and 

I shall respond to that in due course.  

 

Officers consider that LBC is required as the bungalow to be demolished is 

attached to the listed building (and likely was at time of listing) and not 

Page 27



within the scheduled monument. 

 

2 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

2.1 Design and Access Statement/Heritage Report 

 

2.1.1 The applicant has submitted a Design and Access Statement to support the application. The key 

points are summarised below, the full document is available to view on the Council's website. 

 

2.1.2  Rectory Farm at is an important and highly sensitive site, which requires a sympathetic and 

imaginative design solution to ensure not only the protection of the setting of the Tithe Barn, but 

also improvements in its visual appearance to the village of Church Enstone immediately to the 

south. 

 

2.1.3  This proposal represents a unique and exciting opportunity to complete the site masterplan; to 

include the sensitive repair of the Tithe Barn, the removal of the bungalow to facilitate the wider 

view from the public access point to be corrected, and restore it to its historically correct form. 

 

2.1.4  Involvement with Heritage Professionals, Ecologists and Archaeologists with diligent historical 

research and evaluation, as well as careful design development, has produced a considered 

solution for the site which is of the highest quality, and is to the benefit of all stakeholders both 

now and in the future. 

 

2.1.5  The proposal can also be seen to align with local and national planning policy: through a 

combination of extensive research and appreciation of vernacular design along with careful 

positioning within the site, we are confident that the design is of high quality, enhances its 

immediate setting (and vastly enhances the views of the barn) and is sensitive to the defining 

characteristics of the local area. 

 

2.1.6  Given the significance of this site and respective heritage assets, great weight is given to its 

conservation and therefore the repair of the Tithe Barn should be welcomed. The localised stone 

repairs and French drains are holistic solutions to the damp which is caused by the external 

ground levels. 

 

2.1.7  The bungalow exacerbates an unfortunate and detrimental impact on the historic Tithe Barn, 

masking its evidential and aesthetic significance. By relocating the replacement dwelling, it restores 

and fully opens up the south-east elevation of the barn (the key public vantage point), improving 

its evidential and aesthetic significance along with ensuring that views from the rear of the 

Rectorial Tithe Barn outwards over the remnant of the formal garden with terraces, fish pond and 

gravel walks are respected. 

 

2.1.8  Overall, we feel that the proposals have a long term benefit to the site and on the heritage assets 

at the site including the setting of the Scheduled Ancient Monument/Grade II* Listed Barn.  

 

2.1.9  As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies OS2, OS4, EH9, EH11, and EH15 of the adopted 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016, the National 

Design Guide, and the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF 2019. 

 

 

 

Page 28



 

3 THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS 

 

3.1  A single comment in support of the scheme has been received. The comment references the 

heritage benefits that would be accrued through the removal of the bungalow and repairs to the 

Barn. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 3 5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 Introduction 

 

5.1.1  This application seeks Listed Building Consent (LBC) at Church Enstone Hall, Little Tew, Road, 

Church Enstone for: 

 

"Internal and external alterations to Tithe Barn to include replacement of existing doors and the removal 

of the attached bungalow."  

 

5.1.2  The Tithe Barn may date from the C14 and is Grade II* listed and designated as a Scheduled 

Monument. 

 

5.1.3 The proposals include:  

 

 Removal of modern bungalow attached to the Tithe Barn; 

 Repairs to the existing roof tiles and 'torching' the existing slates; 

 Stonework repair; 

 Reopening of triangular openings; 

 Installation of a French drain; and  

 Replacement of concrete floor and polythene DPM with limecrete floor slab. 

 

5.2 Impact upon the Listed Building 

 

5.2.1  LBC applications are not subject to section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. Accordingly, the application does not need to be determined in accordance with the 

development plan. Rather, applications must be determined in accordance with section 16(2) of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (the Act). Given the relevance 

of Local Plan Policies OS4, EH9 and EH11 to this proposal, these policies and the supplementary 

guidance contained in the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (an adopted SPD) are material 

considerations in this assessment, as is the NPPF 2021. 

 

5.2.2  Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining 

applications, local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or 

Page 29



enhancing the significance of heritage assets. Paragraph 194 requires the applicant to describe 

the significance of affected heritage assets. Paragraph 199 states that when considering the 

impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a 

Listed Building, or Conservation Area, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation 

(and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any harm to, or loss of, 

the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from 

development within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification (paragraph 200). 

Paragraph 202 states that where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm 

to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should harm should be weighed 

against the public benefits of the proposal, where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use. 

 

5.2.3  The application has been furnished with a comprehensive heritage statement, which has 

provided an assessment of the significance of the Tithe Barn and impact of the proposals upon 

this significance. Given the scale and nature of the proposed changes, officers consider that the 

assessment provided allows the LPA to fully assess the impact on the proposal in line with 

paragraph 194 of the NPPF.  

 

5.2.4  In order to identify the potential impact of the proposal upon the significance of designated 

heritage assets, it is first necessary to identify and assess the particular significance of the assets 

as directed in NPPF Paragraph 195. In this case, the principle heritage asset that would be 

affected is the C14 Rectorial Tithe Barn, which is Grade II* listed.  

 

5.2.5  The heritage significance of the Tithe Barn is largely derived from its historical, cultural and 

social contribution to the area, together with its architectural significance as a very well 

preserved and fine example of a late medieval tithe barn. 

 

5.2.6  Following consultation with the LPA's highly qualified and experienced Conservation and Design 

Architect, your officers share this view as the existing bungalow detracts significantly from the 

setting of the Tithe Barn and partially obscures its historic form. Therefore, its removal is 

considered to result in a significant improvement to the setting of the Barn.  

 

5.2.7  The proposed works to the Tithe Barn itself are also considered to result in a positive impact 

upon the Grade II* listed barn. The works are largely non-intrusive and would conserve and 

reinstate the Barn whilst securing its long term future through improved drainage and works to 

secure the roof. Further, the proposed replacement floor would be breathable, thereby 

minimising impact upon the historic fabric of the building. A works schedule has also been 

provided to detail how historic fabric will be protected. Therefore, this element of the scheme 

also results in a direct benefit in heritage terms.  

 

5.2.8  Your officers are therefore satisfied that the works proposed will enhance the special 

architectural and historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Section 16(2) of the 

1990 Act and the significance of the designated heritage asset will be sustained, in accordance 

with Section 16 of the NPPF. 

 

5.3 Protected Species  

 

5.3.1  Bats and their roosts are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) (9(1)) impose a duty 

in relation to 'functions which are relevant to nature conservation…so as to secure compliance 

with the requirements of the Directives as set out in Schedule 2.  

Page 30



 

5.3.2  Whilst there is no express mention of protected species within Section 16 of the Act, your 

officers consider that the granting of listed building consent should not circumnavigate the 

requirements of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations. Therefore, the potential 

impact of the proposed works upon protected species is a material consideration in this 

assessment.  

 

5.3.3 In this regard, the application has been furnished with a protected species report, which 

concludes that subject to the implementation of mitigation, compensation, and enhancement 

strategies as detailed in the Report, the proposed development would accord with national 

legislation with regard to protected species. Officers therefore recommend that should 

Members resolve to approve the application, a planning condition is imposed to ensure that all 

working practices and enhancement features as detailed in the Report are be implemented in 

full. Subject to the imposition of planning conditions, your officers conclude that the application 

is acceptable in ecological terms. 

   

5.4 Recommendation  

 

5.4.1  In light of this assessment and having paid special regard to the desirability of preserving the 

building, its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, 

the works are considered to preserve the special character, setting and significance of the listed 

building. As such, your officers recommend that LBC should be granted subject to conditions.  

 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The works must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of 

this consent. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. Prior to the commencement of any works to the Tithe Barn, a sample area of the proposed re-

pointing on the barn shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building. 

 

3. Prior to the commencement of any works to the Tithe Barn, a sample panel of the proposed 

stone tiles proposed for repairs to the roof shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  

                 

REASON: To preserve the architectural integrity of the Listed Building. 

 

4. All works affecting the fabric of the Tithe Barn shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the 

'Tithe Barn Repairs Schedule' (Rev B) dated 28.06.2022 unless otherwise agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Page 31



REASON: To ensure that parts of the original building are properly protected and conserved during 

works. 

 

5. The development shall be completed in accordance with the recommendations of Section 5 of 

the Ecological Impact Assessment Report dated 14/02/2022 and prepared by Wildwood Ecology 

as submitted with the application. All the recommendations in relation to working practices and 

enhancement features shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales or prior 

to first occupation of the dwelling, whichever comes first, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority.  

 

REASON: To ensure that the species and habitats are protected in accordance with The Conservation 

of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 

amended, Circular 06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to 

comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 10th August 2022 

Page 32



 
Application Number 22/00838/OUT 

Site Address Land At 

Chapel Lane 

Enstone 

Oxfordshire 

 

Date 10th August 2022 

Officer Stephanie Eldridge 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Enstone Parish Council 

Grid Reference 437725 E       224364 N 

Committee Date 22nd August 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



 

Application Details: 

 

Outline planning permission for residential development (up to 8 dwellings), access, parking, public open 

space, landscaping and associated development infrastructure. (Some matters reserved) 

 

Applicant Details: 

 

Messrs N J and P N Melrose 

 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Following a public meeting on 23rd May 2022, attended by 39 

parishioners and 6 parish Councillors, the following observations have 

been made which has led to Enstone Parish council voting to object 

to the planning application: 

 

Highways: 

 

1. Chapel Lane is a narrow single track road and the Parish 

Council feels it unsuitable for accommodating such a 

development, due to the increased traffic from residents and 

delivery trucks, especially during the proposed build. 

 

2. There would be insufficient room for trucks containing 

building materials to negotiate the narrow lane and turn into 

the field, especially trucks carrying roof trusses. Access to the 

south side of the site from the A44 is difficult by the village 

green, and the is insufficient room for trucks to rejoin the 

A44 outside the village shop when leaving site. A one way 

system needs to be formally adopted by the village green and 

shop. 

 

3. At the north side of the site there are also access issues as 

parked cars limit the width of vehicle that can pass along the 

lane and these will also limit any space needed to turn into 

the site. 

 

4. The proposed barrier separating the two ends of the site will 

also increase delivery vans trucks needing to negotiate the 

entire length of Chapel Lane. 

 

Ecology: 

 

1. The Parish council feels that the ecology report does not 

represent the reality of the risk to the ecology on the site. 

The report claims that the site is suitable for establishing a 

wild flower meadow on the east side, but this is questioned as 

it has been used for grazing cattle and sheep for many years, 

Page 34



so is very fertile, as represented by diverse range of flora 

supporting an ecosystem for wildlife including, but not limited 

to, the following red list species: starlings, swallows, house 

sparrows, swifts, thrushes and hedgehogs. 

 

2. It has also been highlighted that the report mentioned urban 

birds, but there was no mention of any of these red list 

species.  

 

3. The proposed site acts as a wildlife corridor for species that 

are passing to the river Glyme and are channeled by existing 

urban developments and the A44. 

 

4. The report states that there is no record of badgers within 

1km of the site which contradicts advice given to WODC for 

a previous nearby planning application, 21/00087/FUL. 

Planning application 21/00087/FUL includes an email to 

WODC advising that there are records of badgers and other 

protected species around that site. The site for application 

21/00087/FUL sits NNE of the Chapel Lane site and is less 

than 1km away. 

 

5. It was noted that the ecological survey was undertaken when 

the field had just been cut, so does this allow a true reflection 

of the ecology to be gained? 

 

6. The Parish Council feel that this demonstrates that the 

ecology report has not given full consideration of the impact 

of the proposed development to the ecology. 

 

7. There is no mention of the drystone wall surrounding the site 

which is a habitat for many species. 

 

8. The planning consultant has not adequately explained how the 

proposed development would produce a net gain to diversity. 

 

9. Who would be responsible for maintaining the drystone walls 

if the application was successful? 

 

Design & Layout: 

 

The design and layout for the proposed development does not allow 

spaces for sufficient parking. Parking is already hugely limited in and 

around Chapel Lane and it is felt that the the planning consultants 

have failed to properly address this issue despite several consultation 

meetings where this was repeatedly highlighted. 

 

Landscape: 

 

1. This piece of land is an important part of Enstone and 

Page 35



especially for the residents of Chapel Lane. It is an oasis of 

wildlife a short distance from the busy A44 that gives 

character to this part of Enstone. As such, the planning 

consultants have failed to reveal any benefits to the village 

caused by the loss of this open green space. 

 

2. The loss of the open view will have a considerable impact on 

the residents in an around Chapel Lane. 

 

3. It has also been noted that Mr. Tait claimed to not know of 

previous planning applications that have been refused for the 

same site over the last 30 years. Why did these applications 

not succeed in offering benefits to the community and what 

makes this one offer benefits now? 

 

Increase danger of flooding: 

 

The Parish council are still concerned about he risk of flooding caused 

by such development as there was insufficient detail to explain how 

water would not run down the slope from the hard surfaces of the 

developed site onto the north side of Chapel Lane. Has consideration 

been taken regarding the drainage and sewage and what will be done 

to deal with storm water? 

 

Other: 

 

1. The Parish Council are concerned about the proposed 

development process, whereby some properties will be 

constructed by a developer and others would be sold as self-

build plots. This could lead to a prolonged construction 

period as self-builders my find that completion of 

construction can only be done in phases as finances allow, 

which would be further disruption to the surrounding 

residents. 

 

2. The Parish Council are also concerned that this development 

process could see self-builders buying a plot and then seeking 

to amend the planning permission from one property to two, 

putting further pressure on the surrounding residents and 

further adding to parking challenges. 

 

 Results of vote at public meeting: 

 Parishioners: 39 against; 0 in favour 

 Parish Council: 6 against; 0 in favour 

 

In summary, Enstone Parish Council strongly object to this planning 

application. The Parish Council would ask that another ecology report 

is undertaken and that WODC visit the site to assess the access and 

parking challenges. If, however, the application succeeds, the Parish 

Council request that one way system should be established by the 

Page 36



village shop and green and that further consideration is given to 

parking spaces. 

 

 

Conservation Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

OCC Highways The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact (in terms of highway safety and convenience) on the adjacent 

highway network. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

 G11 access specification inc vision splays 

 Prior to first occupation the widening of Chapel lane 

carriageway together with the proposed parking bays , as 

shown on P20046 001D, in accordance with a scheme to be 

submitted and approved.  

 

INFORMATIVE:  

 

Please note works are required to be carried out within the public 

highway, the applicant shall not commence such work before formal 

approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County Council by way of 

legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County 

Council. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands  No objection. 

 

Thames Water  No Comment Received. 

 

District Ecologist  No Comment Received. 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers  No objection subject to all comments above being taken on board 

and the proposed pre-commencement surface water condition being 

adhered to in full. 

 

Newt Officer  No Comment Received. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37



 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1  18 letters of support have been submitted in respect of this application. The comments mainly 

relate to:  

 

 Provision of affordable housing for younger people and/or first time buyers; 

 Net gain in biodiversity;  

 Area of open space for public to use;  

 Design in-keeping with the area;  

 No adverse flood risk;  

 Would deliver improvements to highways; 

 Good use of an unused site.  

 

2.2  163 letters of objection have been received. The comments mainly relate to: 

 

 Adverse impact on biodiversity;  

 Loss of open space which contributes to visual amenity, landscape character and public well-

being;  

  Increased parking pressure;  

 Increased use of dangerous road and junction;  

 Adverse impact on neighbours;  

 Increased flood risk;  

 Not truly affordable housing;  

 Chapel Lane unsuitable for construction traffic.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1  The Planning Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

3.1.1  The proposed development is of a modest scale and in such a regard, sensitively addresses site 

specific development issues including such matters as site access and traffic, neighbouring 

residential amenity, minimising impacts on the local environment and eliminating any flood risk 

with suitable sustainable drainage. The number of houses proposed, as well as the nature, scale 

and location of the proposed housing on the site has been carefully considered relative to this 

outline planning stage.  

 

3.1.2  The development can duly mitigate any impacts and be accommodated without putting any 

undue pressure on existing services or facilities.  

 

3.1.3  The development brings with it a range of local benefits including;  

 

 A mixed range of homes including affordable homes  

 New parking for the village shops  

 Safe accessibility with priority for pedestrians  

 Public open space for all to use, making a significant proportion of the site open and available for 

public access for the first time  

 Protection of key views across the site  

Page 38



 New pedestrian connections through and across the site, enhancing local pedestrian safety by 

removing the need for villager to walk on Chapel Lane which doesn't have footways and 

improves connectivity north and south from each end of Chapel Lane, providing convenient 

access to the shops and school  

 New enhanced tree and other landscape planting  

 A net gain of 10% in biodiversity with opportunities for sustainable drainage and areas managed 

for ecology interest  

 A high quality development which will make a positive contribution to the character of the 

village. The proposals are in line with the Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 

Framework, and represent sustainable development. In such circumstances planning permission 

should be granted. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H6NEW Existing housing 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1  The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of up to eight dwellings with 

the associated access, landscaping and public open space with all other matters reserved 

(appearance, layout and scale).  

 

5.2  The application site is situated off Chapel Lane, consisting of undeveloped land within the built 

up area of Enstone Village. The site covers 0.65 hectares and is made up of gently sloping 

agricultural paddock land, surrounded on all four sides by existing built form, primarily of a 

residential nature.  

  

5.3  Chapel Lane provides a loop with both ends providing access onto Oxford Road; the main A44 

through the village. To the north and south, the boundaries are formed by existing dry stone 

walls running along Chapel Lane. To the east and west, the boundaries are formed by the rear 

gardens of residential properties within the village.  

  

5.4  The site does not fall within any special designated areas of control.  

 

5.5  The application is before Members of the Uplands Planning sub-committee for consideration as 

Enstone Parish Council raised objections to the scheme. The application was deferred at the July 

2022 meeting to enable Members of the sub-committee to carry out a site visit prior to the 

determination of the application.  

  

 

Page 39



Principle 

 

5.6  Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

provides that the local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development 

plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.  In this case, 

the Development Plan is the Local Plan 2031 adopted in September 2018.  Development which 

is not in accordance with an up-to-date development plan should be refused unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

5.7  Enstone is classified in the Local Plan 2031 as a village, which is suitable for limited development 

which respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help to maintain the 

vitality of the community (policy OS2). Housing Policy H2 states that new dwellings will be 

permitted on undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in 

accordance with the other policies in the plan and in particular the general principles set out in 

Policy OS2.  

 

5.8  Policy OS2 states that villages such as Enstone are suitable for limited development, which 

respects the village character and local distinctiveness and would help maintain the vitality of 

these communities. The general principles set out in OS2 state, inter alia, that development 

should form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or 

character of the area; be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context; not involve the 

loss of an area of open space or other features that makes an important contribution to the 

character and appearance of the area and conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built 

environment. 

As such, the proposal is assessed against the general principles of Policy OS2 in more detail 

below. 

 

Layout, Appearance and Scale 

 

5.9  This application seeks outline planning permission with most matters reserved other than the 

access and landscaping (including the area of public open space). Therefore, matters of layout, 

appearance and scale would be dealt with at the reserved matters staged if members are minded 

to approve the outline application.  

 

5.10  Illustrative plans have been submitted showing the provision of two accesses on the northern 

and southern boundaries of the site on to Chapel Lane with eight dwellings (four detached 

houses and two sets of semi-detached pairs) located in the western half of the site. The plans 

also show a footpath running through the site connecting the two sides of Chapel Lane with a 

significant area of public open space with landscaping to the east. It is indicated on the plans that 

the Cotswold dry stone walling would be proposed within the site alongside wildflower meadow 

planting, native trees and shrubs and potentially a pond to encourage biodiversity.  

 

5.11  Illustrative views within the Design and Access Statement show two storey dwellings and it is 

indicated that the traditional vernacular styles and material palettes taken from existing built 

form in Enstone will guide the final design treatments within the development. This includes 

weathered stone, slate roofs, chimneys and traditional pitched dormer windows.  

 

Page 40



5.12  Your officers acknowledge that the existing parcel of land, while not public space, does provide 

a historic area of open space which makes an important contribution to the character and 

appearance of the Chapel Lane; a key feature being the view east from the existing farm gate in 

the south western corner of the site.  

 

5.13  While the plans are only illustrative at this stage, your officers are of the opinion that the 

drawings indicate that eight dwellings, in a range of sizes and types, can be comfortably 

accommodated within the site with adequate parking and amenity space, alongside a significant 

parcel of public open space and landscaping which would retain the spacious nature of the site 

and open views from one end of Chapel Lane through to the other. Further, your officers note 

that the existing site is private agricultural land and the proposed scheme would open up this 

plot to provide a significant area of public open space for use by the community. The provision 

of a footpath through the site would also improve connectivity between the two sides of Chapel 

Lane providing a new route away from the single track lane. 

 

5.14  In light of the above, the application is considered to be acceptable in these terms subject to a 

legal agreement to secure the public open space and details of its management.  

 

Access 

 

5.15  Two access are proposed off Chapel Lane- one along the Northern boundary and one to the 

South. Four parking spaces for use by the village are proposed along the Southern boundary 

with Chapel Lane. It is proposed that these spaces are set back to allow enough carriageway 

width to enable cars to manoeuvre in and out of spaces. Localised widening of Chapel Lane 

along part of the Southern boundary is also proposed from the western boundary up to the new 

access.  

 

5.16  Your officers note the concerns raised by locals about increased traffic along Chapel Lane and a 

more intensive use of the junctions with the A44. However, the Local Highway Authority has 

raised no objections to the application stating that the development, if permitted, will not have a 

significant detrimental impact (in terms of highway safety and convenience) on the adjacent 

highway network and recommends conditions relating to the access, widening of the Chapel 

Lane carriageway and village parking bays. The widening of Chapel Lane would be secured via a 

S278 legal agreement.  

    

Residential Amenity Impact 

 

5.17  Adopted Local Plan Policy OS2 states that all development should be compatible with adjoining 

uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants.   Concerns have been 

raised in respect of potential overlooking and loss of privacy.  This is an outline application with 

detailed matters such as layout and appearance reserved for later consideration.  It is 

considered that the siting and detailed design of the dwellings could ensure that there are no 

amenity issues resulting from the development.   

 

Biodiversity 

 

5.18  One of the key concerns raised by locals in the objections received relates to the loss of 

biodiversity on the site. Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 states that the 

biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to achieve an overall net gain 

in biodiversity and minimise impacts on geodiversity, including by minor applications 

Page 41



demonstrating a net gain in biodiversity where possible. All developments will be expected to 

provide towards the provision of necessary enhancements in areas of biodiversity importance. 

 

5.19  An ecological appraisal of the site has been submitted and the indicative plans show a significant 

area of the site retained as public open space with a wildflower meadow, native planting, and the 

potential for an ecology pond. Using the DEFRA 3.0 Biodiversity Impact Assessment calculation 

tool the submitted report suggests that the proposed development would result in a 10.01% 

overall net gain for biodiversity (including habitat retention, creation and enhancements). 

Further, an e-DNA survey for Great Crested Newts (GCN) has been submitted in support of 

the application. The result of the report is 'negative' for GCN's and therefore GCN's are absent 

from the local area. The ecologist also advises that the nearest pond (which is located 130m 

north of the site) is relatively recent (created post 2010) with limited opportunities for 

colonisation.  

 

5.20  The Council's Ecologist has raised no objections to the proposal subject to a number of 

conditions including the submission of a Construction Environmental Method Statement and a 

Landscape and Ecological Management Plan to secure the delivery of the ecological mitigation 

measures and enhancements to achieve the net gain in biodiversity on the site.  

  

Flood Risk 

 

5.21  Concerns have been raised in respect of drainage and potential flooding.  The site lies within 

Flood Zone 1 in an area at very low risk from fluvial flooding and the Council's Drainage Officer 

has raised no objection to the application subject to the imposition of a surface water drainage 

condition.  Foul drainage matters would be dealt with by Thames Water.   

 

Other Matters 

 

5.22  While, in accordance with Policy H3 of the Local Plan, based on the information provided there 

is no requirement for affordable housing as only eight dwellings are proposed (the trigger is 11 

or more units or which have a max combined floor space of more than 1000m2), your officers 

note that it is specified that two of the proposed dwellings are offered as affordable housing 

which could be delivered by adopting the Government's First Homes Initiative where a 30% 

discount to open market value would be preserved on these two properties in perpetuity. This 

is welcomed by your officers and will be secured via a legal agreement if Members were minded 

to approve the application.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.23  Taking into account the above matters, the proposal is considered acceptable on its merits and 

complies with Policies OS2, OS4, H2, H6, EH2, EH3, T1, T2, and T3 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031, the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016, subject to the relevant legal agreements. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1 (a) Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 

Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission; 

and 

Page 42



(b) The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of 

five years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from 

the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is 

the later. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

as amended. 

 

2 Details of the Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale, (herein called the reserved 

matters) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

before any development begins and the development shall be carried out as approved. 

 

REASON: The application is not accompanied by such details. 

 

3 That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed 

below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

4 The means of access between the land and the highway shall be constructed, laid out, 

surfaced, lit and drained in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all ancillary works therein 

specified shall be undertaken in accordance with the said specification before first 

occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 

 

REASON: To ensure a safe and adequate access. 

 

5 That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

scheme shall include details of the size, position and construction of the drainage 

scheme and results of soakage tests carried out at the site, to demonstrate the 

infiltration rate. Three test results should be submitted for each soakage pit as per BRE 

365, with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for design. The details shall 

include a management plan setting out the maintenance of the drainage asset. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

first occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be maintained in 

accordance with the management plan thereafter. Development shall not take place until 

an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is not 

exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National Planning 

Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface water design is not agreed before 

works commence, it could result in abortive works being carried out on site or alterations to the 

approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not occur. 

 

6 No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum 

water consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, 

has been complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

Page 43



REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

7 Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Environmental Method 

Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

in accordance with the principles and recommendations set out in the Ecological 

Assessment. These shall include details of precautionary methods of working to protect 

badger, nesting birds, hedgehog and other species from harm during works, measures 

for storage and disposal of waste (including vegetation and soils containing Schedule 9 

invasive plant species), measures to ensure no Schedule 9 species can spread to the 

adjacent wildlife site. The Plan shall include full details of compensation and 

enhancement measures for species including the provision of bird and bat boxes and 

habitat connectivity measures for hedgehogs. Works shall be implemented in strict 

accordance with the approved methodology including timescales, unless otherwise 

agreed in writing. 

 

REASON:  To ensure the protection of species and habitats in accordance with The Conservation of 

Habitats and Species 2017 (as amended), the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as amended, Circular 

06/2005, paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 15), Policy 

EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the 

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

8 Prior to the commencement of development, a Landscape and Ecological Management 

Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority in accordance with the principles and recommendations set out in the 

Ecological Assessment. The Plan shall cover a period as appropriate for the delivery of 

biodiversity net gain. The Plan shall include measures for establishment, enhancement 

and management of habitats and open spaces within the site. It shall include details of 

planting including schedules to provide linkages and connectivity to the wider landscape. 

This shall include a timetable for management activities as well as a monitoring schedule 

and shall be fully implemented. 

 

REASON: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with  paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework (Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the 

Environment Act 2021 and in order for the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment 

and Rural Communities Act 2006 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

1. Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation  

 High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

Page 44



 

For further guidance, please visit:  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

2. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United 

Kingdom, and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to 

individuals of the species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation 

licence from Natural England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts 

are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works 

that will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to 

ensure their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or 

only after the chicks have fledged from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of 

protected species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified 

and experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 

commencing works (with regard to bats). 

 

3. The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable Drainage 

Techniques in order to ensure compliance with; 

 

 Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))  

 

 Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in  sustainable home building practice 

 

 Oxfordshire County Council's Local standards and guidance for surface water drainage on major 

development in Oxfordshire (V1.2 December 2021)  

 

 The local flood risk management strategy published by Oxfordshire County Council 2015 - 2020  

as per the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1)) 

 

 CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015 

 

 The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, produced by 

the Environment Agency in July 2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. 

Page 45



 

 Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015). 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Stephanie Eldridge 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 10th August 2022 

Page 46



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS   

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3RE

G County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4RE

G County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under 

Permitted Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decisio

n Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decisio

n Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending  

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

1.  20/03362/FUL Freeland and Hanborough WDN 

  

Alterations to include conversion of hotel to holiday lets with the erection of first 

floor extension, changes to fenestration and two storey Northwest extension to 

create living space for Manager's Family and conversion of roof space to create an 
additional holiday let with associated works. 

Churchill Court Hotel Main Road Long Hanborough 

Ms Yan Tsang 

 

 

2.  21/02080/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (a full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

20/02107/HHD 

Yarrow Junction Road Churchill 

Audrey and Sharon Bardsley 

 

 

3.  21/02268/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a replacement ancillary store with home office and accommodation 

(amended plans). 

Woodford Cottage Banbury Road Enstone 

Ms Kate Farquhar-Thomson 

 

 

4.  21/02665/CND Chipping Norton REF 

  

Discharge of condition 12 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

20/01933/FUL 

Police Station Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Mark Edwards 

 
 

5.  21/02901/POB Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Modification of planning obligations for planning approval 18/03403/FUL to change the 

tenure of the affordable housing dwellings from affordable rent and shared ownership 

to discounted market housing under the 'first homes' scheme. 

Olivers Garage 80 - 82 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Steven Kerry 

 

 

Page 48



DELGAT 
 

6.  21/03438/HHD Ascott and Shipton WDN 

  

Construction of a pond 

Vine Cottage High Street Lyneham 

Ms Andrea Semple 

 

 

7.  21/03510/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Alterations and extensions to existing dwellinghouse. Demolition of existing 
outbuilding and erection of replacement outbuildings. Relocation of existing outdoor 

swimming pool. (Amended.) 

The Dower House Sarsgrove Wood Churchill 

C/O Agent 

 

 

8.  21/03511/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Alterations and extensions to existing dwellinghouse. Demolition of existing 

outbuilding and erection of replacement outbuildings. Relocation of existing outdoor 

swimming pool. (Amended.) 

The Dower House Sarsgrove Wood Churchill 

* 

 

 

9.  21/03611/FUL Burford APP 

  

Conversion of existing barns to enlarge existing dwelling and create two additional 

self-contained holiday let units (amended plans and description). 

Upton Downs Farm Upton Burford 

Mr C Mills 

 

 

10.  22/00020/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a new shed/log store (amended) 

2 Union Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Duncan Smith 

 
 

11.  22/00063/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Two storey rear extension and single storey side extension (amended) 

34 Churchill Way Long Hanborough Witney 

J Hill and V Campbell 

 

 

Page 49



DELGAT 
 

12.  22/00123/CND Chadlington and Churchill SPL 

  

APPROVED:-REFUSED:- 

Drive Cottage Sarsden Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Gallagher 

 

 

13.  22/00553/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 
Discharge of conditions 7 (boundary treatment details) and 12 (water consumption) 

of planning permission 20/00991/FUL 

Land North Of Gas Lane And Ascott Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Vince O'Brien 

 

 

14.  22/00632/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Works to reinstate kitchen garden, including construction of greenhouse with 

formation of pedestrian access through to North garden, raising height of stone 

walling, installation of outdoor open fireplace, erection of timber pergola and estate 

railing gates together with associated landscaping works to include re-routing of 

surface water to Coombe Brook via a proposed rill. Installation of a new front 

entrance gate (amended). 

Lower Farm Taynton Burford 

Mr And Mrs D Clarkson 

 

 

15.  22/00633/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External works to reinstate the kitchen garden, including construction of greenhouse 

with formation of pedestrian access through to North garden, raising height of stone 

walling, installation of outdoor open fireplace, erection of timber pergola and estate 

railing gates together with associated landscaping works. 

Lower Farm Taynton Burford 

Mr And Mrs D Clarkson 

 

 
16.  22/00664/FUL Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing outbuilding to provide a self contained annex to Finstock 

Manor with the ability for it to be separately let out as a holiday home (amended 

plans) 

Finstock Manor Witney Road Finstock 

Mr Alex Robinson 

 

 

Page 50



DELGAT 
 

17.  22/00781/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to convert an existing outbuilding to provide a self 

contained annex to Finstock Manor with the ability for it to be separately let out as a 

holiday home (amended plans) 

Finstock Manor Witney Road Finstock 

Mr Alex Robinson 

 

 
18.  22/00917/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

To replace the flat roof element and the installation of an extractor fan (amended). 

10 Ball Lane Tackley Kidlington 

Ms Katherine  O'Donnell 

 

 

19.  22/00887/LBC Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Demolition of existing rear extension and erection of replacement single storey rear 

extension (amended). 

Hill Farm Bruern Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr and Mrs Beale 

 

 

20.  22/00886/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Demolition of existing rear extension and erection of replacement single storey rear 

extension (amended). 

Hill Farm Bruern Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr and Mrs Beale 

 

 

21.  22/00909/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alteration of first floor walls (demolition of existing and erection of new / infill) to 

accommodate a new staircase up to the loft along with partial removal of the roof 

structure to allow the loft conversion. Two new rooflights are proposed in the rear 
elevation 

Lorne House  141 The Hill Burford 

Mr Huckstep 

 

 

Page 51



DELGAT 
 

22.  22/00914/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Amendments and alterations including replacement external doors and windows, 

amendments to the internal layout, repositioning of fireplace and chimney (amended 

plans). 

The Standing Barn Taynton Burford 

Mr And Mrs PJ And GR Fennessy And Kemsley 

 

 
23.  22/00915/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Amendments and alterations including replacement external doors and windows, 

amendments to the internal layout, repositioning of fireplace and chimney (amended 

plans). 

The Standing Barn Taynton Burford 

Mr And Mrs PJ And GR  Fennessy And Kemsley 

 

 

24.  22/01025/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Conversion of conservatory to a pitched roofed rear extension 

Brow Cottage 1 Stow Road Fifield 

Mr Mark Alani 

 

 

25.  22/01058/FUL Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to form external window to the rear elevation 

124 High Street Burford Oxfordshire 

Ben Tuffour 

 

 

26.  22/01059/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to form new layout. New external window to the rear elevation. 

124 High Street Burford Oxfordshire 
Ben Tuffour 

 

 

Page 52



DELGAT 
 

27.  22/01088/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to refurbish existing dwelling to include replacement 

of existing rear external door, insertion of new window opening, part replacement 

rear lean-to roof structure, removal of C20 internal works and finished to allow 

relocation of existing kitchen and formation of ground floor Pantry, Utility, 

Cloakroom and first floor shower room and associated service works and relocation 

of A/C units to second floor existing fire escape platform. (amended) 

Hope House 14 Oxford Street Woodstock 
Mr And Mrs W And R Ashley And McCulloch 

 

 

28.  22/01098/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbishment to existing dwelling to include part replacement rear lean-to roof 

structure and relocation of A/C units to second floor existing fire escape platform. 

(amended) 

Hope House 14 Oxford Street Woodstock 

Mr And Mrs W And R Ashley And McCulloch 

 

 

29.  22/01117/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Conversion of barn to stables, removal of static caravan & erection of new hay 

barn/machine store (amended plans and description). 

Magpie Farm  Enstone Road Heythrop 

Mr And Mrs P Sherriff 

 

 

30.  22/01133/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Change of use from paddock land to extend domestic garden 

The Homestead Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Jones 

 

 

Page 53



DELGAT 
 

31.  22/01151/CLP Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (Front area of the house will be converted from garden to 

parking. The existing slabbing and garden areas will be removed, the area will be 

levelled, and a gravel surface will be put over the top.) 

Certificate of Lawfulness (remove a short section of wall, build another short section 

to create access at the front of our house to park (and charge) a car. The existing 

space is a patio garden, and we would replace this with a gravelled (porous) area for 

parking a vehicle. 
Wychwood Cottage Fawler Chipping Norton 

Dr Barnaby Norman 

 

 

32.  22/01168/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remove existing conservatory and construct new single storey rear extension. 

Conversion of existing garages into habitable rooms, internal alterations and coloured 

render applied to existing external walls. 

2A The Slade Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mr K Mangell 

 

 

33.  22/01171/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of mains gas supply and a meter box on the front elevation. 

Witney Cottage Witney Lane Leafield 

Ms Tracy Smith 

 

 

34.  22/01194/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of a redundant, curtilage listed barn into habitable space to include a 

workshop with a home office at mezzanine level. 

The Old Malt House 5 Fox Lane Middle Barton 

Mr And Mrs Shomade 
 

 

Page 54



DELGAT 
 

35.  22/01195/LBC The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to convert a redundant, curtilage listed barn into 

habitable space to include a workshop with a home office at mezzanine level. 

The Old Malt House 5 Fox Lane Middle Barton 

Mr And Mrs Shomade 

 

 

36.  22/01199/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 
  

Extension to form new lean-to garden store to detached garage to replace former log 

store (Retrospective). 

Lavender Cottage 153 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr And Mrs Gillespie 

 

 

37.  22/01229/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of first floor extension above garage to create additional bedroom. 

(Retrospective). 

Eden House 3A New Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Glen Jackson 

 

 

38.  22/01208/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Siting of 10 additional holiday lodges (static caravans) and associated infrastructure, to 

replace touring caravans. 

Caravan Park Merryweather Farm Hook Norton Road 

Cotswold Hills Country Park Ltd 

 

 

39.  22/01325/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

  

Proposed rear extension, one and a half storey including new gable roof and loft 

accommodation. Landscaping works to front and rear of property. 

Lime View Bicester Road Enstone 
Miss Leonie Salvesen 

 

 

Page 55



DELGAT 
 

40.  22/01326/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Replacement of rear conservatory with a single storey sun room, front single storey 

extension with oak framed porch, repositioning of front dormer window, insertion of 

rooflight on front elevation 

Wenlock House 166A Main Road Long Hanborough 

Mr & Mrs Bailey 

 

 

41.  22/01337/CND  APP 
  

Discharge of conditions 8 (full surface water drainage scheme) and 9 (mitigation 

strategy and management plan) of planning permission 19/01862/FUL 

Outwood Cottage Over Kiddington Woodstock 

Juxon Farms Ltd 

 

 

42.  22/01338/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Construction of timber outbuilding and compost storage 

Cornwell Glebe Cornwell Chipping Norton 

Mr E Wray 

 

 

43.  22/01343/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Installation of timber gates and two gateposts (to replace existing) with a maximum 

height of 1.9 metres. (amended) 

Southwood  45 Bladon Road Woodstock 

Dr David Metcalfe 

 

 

44.  22/01356/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey extension to provide potting/workroom. 

Old School House Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs S Darnell 

 
 

45.  22/01357/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to erect single storey extension to provide 

potting/workroom and to replace door on the North West elevation (amended). 

Old School House Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs S Darnell 

 

 

Page 56



DELGAT 
 

46.  22/01359/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (first floor section sample) 5 (access between the land and 

the highway) 7 (a scheme for protecting the proposed apartments from noise) 8 

(details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities for birds) 9 (scheme of 

hard and soft landscaping) 10 (details of boundary treatment) 12 (details of all external 

windows and doors) and 14 (details of Rapid EV charging points) of planning 

permission 20/01511/FUL 

1 Farley Lane Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Richard Dennis 
 

 

47.  22/01372/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey extension to connecting building between the main house 

and rear kitchen building together with a change of pitched roof in line with the 

existing ridge height and insertion of additional rooflight. Insertion of new French 

doors to replace existing kitchen window. 

Old Orchard 27 Millwood End Long Hanborough 

Miss Kathryn Gilbert 

 

 

48.  22/01376/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Proposed rear extension with associated internal and external works. 

9 Longore Stonesfield Witney 

Mr and Mrs H Bathe 

 

 

49.  22/01383/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Part discharge of condition 5 (details of all external windows and doors) of planning 

permission 18/03065/HHD 

Ivy House Church Lane Charlbury 

Mrs Harding 

 

 

50.  22/01431/HHD Charlbury and Finstock REF 
 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Insertion of dormer windows to front elevation, render finish to existing and first 

floor extension to rear of dwelling. 

113 High Street Finstock Chipping Norton 

Mrs Pippa Havenhand 

 

 

Page 57



DELGAT 
 

51.  22/01388/CND Burford APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 6 (scheme for landscaping) 7 (30-year Biodiversity 

Management Plan) 8 (community use agreement) of planning permission 

21/03948/FUL 

Burford Comprehensive School  Cheltenham Road Burford 

Mr Alan Staniforth 

 

 

52.  22/01389/S73 Ascott and Shipton APP 
 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/00991/FUL to allow the addition of 

a dormer window to Plot 1 and ensuite and dormer window to Plot 2 (part-

retrospective) 

Land North Of Gas Lane And Ascott Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr C O'Brien 

 

 

53.  22/01391/HHD Burford APP 

  

Erection of a detached building comprising 2 car port bays with attached enclosed 

rooms and provision of first floor room above accessed by an external stair. 

The Roarings  Shipton Road Fulbrook 

Mr Christopher Seymour 

 

 

54.  22/01436/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement porch to front and access paving for disabled. 

Lower Farm Cottage Cote Lane Taston 

Mr. Tahar Haddadi 

 

 

55.  22/01401/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of an existing lean-to link extension and north-west projecting single 

storey outbuildings. Refurbishment works to include erection of replacement single 
storey rear extension. Re-opening of the original pedestrian access gate due east 

together with landscaping and associated works. 

Grove Farmhouse High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs Butler-Madden 

 

 

Page 58



DELGAT 
 

56.  22/01430/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 3 (window and door frames) and 4 (details of external 

windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 19/01009/LBC 

Old Monts Church Enstone Chipping Norton 

Ms Hazel Belteine 

 

 

57.  22/01442/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 
  

Discharge of conditions 6 (details of bat roosting and nesting opportunities for birds) 

and 7 (details of external lighting) of planning permission 21/00842/HHD 

Normans 3 Church Road Chadlington 

Mr Mike Smith 

 

 

58.  22/01446/FUL Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

  

Conversion of existing dwelling, including erection of first floor side extension, to 

create two separate properties with parking, refuse and amenity spaces. 

34 Shipton Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs D And J Trim 

 

 

59.  22/01459/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Conversion of existing field shelter to create home office for domestic use. 

Elm Farm The Green Freeland 

Mr And Mrs H Whitbread 

 

 

60.  22/01461/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Front elevation extension to roof to improve internal bathroom and alterations to 

enlarge existing opening to kitchen living area on rear elevation. 

Pinsley House 178 Main Road Long Hanborough 

Ms Kylie Woollard 

 

 
61.  22/01538/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Erection of single storey front extension. 

28 Park Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Barry Griffiths 

 

 

Page 59



DELGAT 
 

62.  22/01478/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Single storey side extension 

Calais Cottage Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Watson 

 

 

63.  22/01501/S73 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 
 

Discharge of condition 6 and variation of conditions 2 and 5 of planning permission 

21//01189/FUL to allow amendments to wall and chimney heights, greenhouse model, 

pool and oil tank locations, and the provision of bat/bird box details. 

Old Rectory Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mr D Harrison 

 

 

64.  22/01504/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Demolition of an existing timber shed and erection of a bathroom extension. 

7 St Johns Road Tackley Kidlington 

Andrew Simmonds 

 

 

65.  22/01523/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Urgent structural repairs to west elevation and roof structure 

Hitchmans Mews 2 West Street Chipping Norton 

Grant and Milne 

 

 

66.  22/01524/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing store extension, erection of single storey side extension 

Wychwood Cottage Fawler Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Norman 

 
 

67.  22/01525/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of garden shed/office between side elevation of house and boundary 

10 St Johns Road Tackley Kidlington 

Mr and Mrs Alistair and Emma Pagnamenta 

 

 

Page 60



DELGAT 
 

68.  22/01551/HHD Chipping Norton WDN 

  

Replace garage with a single storey extension 

22 Cross Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr S King 

 

 

69.  22/01552/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 
Construction of replacement entrance gates. 

The Mill Cottage  93 Witney Street Burford 

Mr Simon West 

 

 

70.  22/01554/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to change the first floor layout and install bifold 

doors in North elevation. 

17 Market Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Dave Marler And Julie Wigg 

 

 

71.  22/01579/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of first floor side, single storey and two storey rear extensions and 

construction of front entrance porch (amended). 

Liberty House 3 Swailbrook Place Kingham 

Mr Matthew Woodford 

 

 

72.  22/01583/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Demolition of existing front entrance porch and construction of two storey 

extension. Alterations to existing driveway inside the property boundary. 

58 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Stephen Tomalin 

 
 

73.  22/01590/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of replacement single storey rear extension. 

8 Wroslyn Road Freeland Witney 

Mr And Mrs K Brasey 

 

 

Page 61



DELGAT 
 

74.  22/01603/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 3 (schedule of materials) of planing permission 20/02655/FUL 

Broadstone Farm Ditchley Road Charlbury 

Mr James Renfrew 

 

 

75.  22/01620/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 
 

Single storey extension 

Vine Cottage Dean Chipping Norton 

David and Diane Bunney 

 

 

76.  22/01624/HHD Chadlington and Churchill REF 

  

Convert loft to habitable living space, flat-roofed dormer to rear and roof windows to 

front. Reorder first floor study, bedroom and landing to accommodate new staircase. 

Fairfield Brook End Chadlington 

Dr Matthew Scroggs 

 

 

77.  22/01643/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Erection of single storey extension 

27 Busby Close Stonesfield Witney 

Mr And Mrs Hanks 

 

 

78.  22/01631/S73 Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 22/00481/HHD to 

allow for changes to fenestration and movement of wall (amended) 

Kuzniks Pooles Lane Charlbury 

Mr Matthew Dale 

 

 
79.  22/01632/S73 Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 (approved plans) and condition 4 (details of external 

windows and doors) of planning permission 20/03118/FUL 

Lower Buildings Green End Chadlington 

Mr O Corbett 

 

 

Page 62



DELGAT 
 

80.  22/01636/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Single storey front extension 

8 Greenfield Crescent Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Andrew Laughton 

 

 

81.  22/01638/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Ground floor front extension. Removal of existing three light window to existing 
gable end forming new entrace to property. Removal of internal wall. Formation of 

canopy to new entrance door. 

Cotswold House High Street Fifield 

Mr Antony Darwall-Smith 

 

 

82.  22/01648/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Proposed single storey front extension and canopy over front door 

52 Holliers Crescent Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Hawkins 

 

 

83.  22/01669/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to existing barn conversion, and conversion of attached store building to 

Garden Room 

Reeves Barn Pound Hill Charlbury 

Hicks And Petersen 

 

 

 

84.  22/01707/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Loft conversion to have clear glazed window in side elevation. Demolish existing 

chimney and rebuild it in different place. 

6 Pound Bank Sandford St Martin Chipping Norton 

Ms Camilla Easby 
 

 

Page 63



DELGAT 
 

85.  22/01710/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Engineering works to extend existing garden terrace to rear of Hay Barn, plus a 

detached pergola and circular bar with associated landscaping and services. 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

86.  22/01713/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 
  

Proposed single storey rear extension (amended version of 22/00848/HHD) 

23 Oakland Close Freeland Witney 

Mr And Mrs Clark 

 

 

87.  22/01728/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

First floor rear extension 

Southerwood Church Walk Combe 

Mr and Mrs Ashcroft 

 

 

88.  22/01751/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Rear Single Storey extension and alterations to rear section of existing house to re-

open former blocked doorways to new extension and altering floor to kitchen to 

remove current ramp and form smaller step and formation of stone outbuilding 

Donnington House  182 The Hill Burford 

Mr Gary Davis 

 

 

89.  22/01752/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Rear Single Storey extension and alterations to rear section of existing house to re-

open former blocked doorways to new extension and altering floor to kitchen to 

remove current ramp and form smaller step and formation of stone outbuilding 
Donnington House  182 The Hill Burford 

Mr Gary Davis 

 

 

Page 64



DELGAT 
 

90.  22/01753/CND Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (schedule of materials) of planning permission 

22/00481/HHD 

Kuzniks Pooles Lane Charlbury 

Mr Matthew Dale 

 

 

91.  22/01770/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 
 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of conservatory to be replaced with a single storey rear extension 

8 Littlebrook Meadow Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Hillier 

 

 

92.  22/01771/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remove conservatory, erection of single storey extension. Insert roof light on roof 

slope and add wood burner flue roof slope. Modify window on rear elevation. Build 

greenhouse. 

Lytch Gate Cottage Hastings Hill Churchill 

Mr And Mrs T Savage 

 

 

93.  22/01794/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Improvement of existing residential access off Hook Norton Road. 

Greystones Hook Norton Road Great Rollright 

Miss Louisa Harvey 

 

 

94.  22/01796/CLP Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of single storey side extension). 
The Wells The Drive Enstone 

Mr And Mrs Paul Baker 

 

 

Page 65



DELGAT 
 

95.  22/01799/NMA Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

The re-organisation and upgrade of the existing Caravan Club Site to include the 

removal of 92 touring caravan pitches and demolition of existing site buildings, 

construction of replacement facilities and maintenance/housekeeping buildings with 

provision of static accommodation in the form of 36 Holiday Lodges (non material 

amendment to allow re-location of lodge positions and change of colour finishes for 

windows, doors and fascias, from brown to grey). 

Bladon Chains Caravan Park Bladon Woodstock 

Vanbrugh Unit Trust 
 

 

96.  22/01806/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of replacement open timber front entrance porch. 

19 William Smith Close Churchill Chipping Norton 

Mrs Jayne King 

 

 

97.  22/01859/CND Chipping Norton APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

22/00427/HHD 

18 Common Lane Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr and Mrs Jenkins Donovan 

 

 

98.  22/01890/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of existing dwelling and outbuildings. Erection of a replacement dwelling 

and outbuilding together with associated works and landscaping (non-material 

amendment to 21/03347/FUL to allow alterations to approved garage building to 

provide a dormer window and external stair). 

East Lodge The Green Kingham 

S Hanson 

 

 
99.  22/01916/NMA Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Alterations and conversion of loft with addition of dormer windows and roof lights. 

Part-raising of roof to establish first floor accommodation. Erection of new porch 

(non-material amendment to allow changes to dormer windows, fenestration and 

porch). 

Coldwell Brook 52 Shipton Road Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs D Robinson 

 

 

Page 66



DELGAT 
 

100.  22/01934/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 8 (Details of Car Park Layout) of planning permission 

21/03464/FUL 

Heythrop Park Hotel  Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

101.  22/01963/NMA Burford APP 
  

Non-material amendment to planning permission 21/04123/S73 to allow changes to 

the design and layout of the approved care home and its associated areas (non-

material amendment to accommodate level changes). 

 

Land West Of Shilton Road Burford 

Porthaven Properties No3 Ltd 

 

 

102.  22/02083/NMA Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Extensions to and amalgamation of Westbridge and Centre Cottages to form a single 

dwellinghouse with external alterations to Old Forge Cottage for use as an annexe to 

the new dwelling and construction of detached garden room. Associated works, 

change of use to extend domestic curtilage and create new parking area. Close 

existing and relocate vehicular access (non-material amendment to allow mullioned 

ground floor window, serving drawing room, in place of sash window). 

Westbridge Cottage Green End Chadlington 

Mr And Mrs George Bailey 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council –APPEALS 

 

APP/D3125/W/21/3287387 

Land North of Witney Road, Finstock, OX7 3DG 

The development proposed is the erection of a single dwelling house.  

Appeal Dismissed  

 

21/00506/FUL  

Land North East Of London Lane, Ascott Under Wychwood – original application  
Appeal dismissed. Application for an award of costs allowed.  

 

21/00732/FUL  

Land North Of Witney Road, Finstock – original application  

Appeal dismissed. 

 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions

